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The 01d Warden's House is located at 602 North Main Street in Stillwater
Minnesota. The warden's residence was built outside of the prison walls
on the south bank of Battle Hollow ravine and overlooks the site where the
Minnesota-Territorial and State Prison complex once was situated, The
height of the ravine embankment is approximately thirty feet at this point.
The site location of the prison was chosen within the ravine because of
the close proximity of the St., Croix River and steamboat landings located
across Main Street; in addition to the easy availability to purchase the
nine acres of quagmire ground.

The 0ld Warden's House is a two story, low gabled roof structure
designed in an early Gree}/ievival style with Feder%y'inflgzgyg . The
residence was constucted Yof locally quarried stone between J851 and 1853,
The wood frame additions on the west side were added in 1870. The principle
entrance is centered on the east wall which is composed of completely
trimmed and dressed limestone, The wood double entrance doors of the

first and second floor are set into the stonewall and encased by a two

story wood balcony that forms a center gaple on the once simple broadside
house, This balcony erected about 191 lso encloses one window on each
side of the doors, It replaced a full front, post supported, promenade
with double posted pillars, supporting the walk-out balcony of the second
floor entrance.

The remaining limestone walls are hand tooled random ashlar, The
building's corners are accented by quoins, twice the height of the remaining
coursing.,

Two over two windows are embellished within slim flat openings with
thick sandstode lintels and sills. Originally six over six windows were
used and were protected by wooden shutters.,

A 31ng1e brick chlmney is located at the apex of the north and south
gable and a broken pediment is situated on the gabled walls accenting the
roof line,

Several wood framed structures were added to the west side of the
stone house during a building expansion program in 1870 at the prison site.
This west side addition is now a cut back version finalized about 1910.
The one and half story frame structure with wood clapboard covering is
set upon a red brick foundation. An Italiniate bay window, part of the
1870 construction, is located on the south wall of the addition. Six
over six windows embellished in a plan molding are located on the ground
floor. A smaller plain molding contains the two over two windows that are
located on the half floor above. A small enclosed entrance to the house
is located on the north side of this clapboard structure,

At one time a large two story framed carriage barn was located about
one hundred feet to the rear of the warden's house but was removed around
the time the prison was abandoned. A stone storage building constructed
during the 1870's encroached upon the north side of the front lawn along
Main Street; this facility disappeared in the late 1890's, This storage
facility was attached to the prison guard wall that forms the northern
boundary for the warden's house property. Today this twenty-five foot
limestone wall serves to retain the U-shaped ravine and supports the
embankment from eroding,

(see continuation sheet)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNI,F\CANCE .

The 0ld Warden's House funct oned as the Minnesota Territorial and
State Prison Warden's residend€ from 1853 until the prison was abandoned
in 1914, /The two story limestone building is the only remaining structure
of the territorial prison and is the only principle structure left of the
state prison institution at Stillwater, Minnesota.

Minnesota's prison was first proposed by Governor Ramsey in his
address to the territorial legislature on September 3, 1849, The legisla-
ture designated Stillwater as the prison site after Congress appropriated
twenty thousand dollars for the structure in June of 1850, The prison was
to be erected on the northern edge of the town of Stillwater in Battle
Hollow; a ravine named after a bloody encounter between the Dakota and
Chippewa Indians in 1839,

Plans for the complex were accepted from Jacob Fisher and the con-
struction contracts were awarded to the firm of Jesse Taylor Company
This first contract specified the outside wall, the warden's house, -and
the main prison building, Construction began in 1851, Mand by 18¥%3 these
structures were completed, The warden's house was built outside of the
prison walls on the south bank of the ravine and overlooked the complex.

The territorial leglslature of 1853 prov1ded for an admlnlstrative
structure and a warden; naped by the legislature for a term of five
yvears, Francis R, Delan ‘one of the contractors of the Jesse Taylor
Company, took office April 4, 1853, The first two wardens were appointed
to the office by the territorial legislature., The governor, with con-
firmation from the Senate, appointed the warden's between the years 1858
and 1889, after Minnesota became a state, In 1889, the legislature
moved to take away political favofit;sm out of the prison by vesting
direction and control to a five member board of managers who appointed
the state prison warden,

Thirteen wardens administered the Stillwater penitentiary during the
sixty-one years of the institutions existence, Terms of office varied
in length of time between five months to over twenty years., Qualifica-
tions to hold the office of warden were as diverse as their length of
office terms, A large number of the wardens were lumberman, some were
store merchants and in the final years there were two professional
penologists,

High points of the Minnesota State Prisomn Wardens adm1n1stration in
the correctional field are as follows: the prison library initiated
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7. fiption

In 1941 the 0ld Warden's House was obtained by the Washington County
Historical Society for a museum, The museum's collections contain articles
used at the old prison as well as numerous artifacts relating to the history
of Washington County. In general, the building is in a good state of
preservation.

8. Significance

under the first warden, Francis R, Delano, was to become one of the
finest prison libraries in the country in later years, The first prison
physician and chaplin were appointed to the institution in 1858. The
issuing of the "penitentiary striped" uniform was begun in 1860 for easy
identification; this clothing rule was not completely abolished until 1921,
A "good conduct scheme" for reducing the lengths of a convict's sentence
through good behavior was established in 1862; this system considerably
altered and broadened over the years is still in effect today. During the
1860's the use of guards to patrol the prison at night, to curtail the
numerous escapes, was commenced, The inmates newspaper, the Prison Mirror,
was established in 1887,

Under the administration of Warden Randell, in 1890, the state went into
the business of manufacturing twine at the state prison. This was an
attempt to break the political power of the '"contract system'" that began in
1859 involving the leasing of convicts and prison property to private business
It was not until the abandonment of the prison in 1914, that the '"contract
system'" actually terminated,

Under the guidance of the first professional penologist to head the
Minnesota State Prison, Albert Garvin, the beginnings of a grading system
of convicts and a prison school was undertaken in 1891, Garvin was replaced
by Henry Wolfer, another trained penologist who introduced a new era in
prison management in Minnesota. Under Warden Wolfer's leadership pardons
became authorized by state law, a system of grading convicts was established
that lasted until 1953, and the prison school finally became a reality in
providing the prisoners with educational rehabilitation, It should be
pointed out that the new prison at Bayport in Washington County was built
under his supervision; Wolfer was the last warden at the Stillwater prison
location,

The prison complex was ordered demolished in 1936 with the exception of
the 0ld Warden's House that was acqujred in 1941 by the Washington County
Historical Society for a museum;\;t’iz still operated for this purpose, The
0ld Warden's House is significant because it represents the prison warden's
residence in Minnesota between the years 1853 to 1914, It is the only
remnant of the Minnesota Territorial Prison established in 1853, and the only
principle structure left standing of the original Minnesota State Prison at
Stillwater, Minnesota,
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